
Members of the City Council

Wade Cowan. Mayor
BillBiasi, MayorPro-Tempore
Harold Anderson

Jesse Loren

Pierre Neu

CITY OF

ERS
t n ( a

E»t. 1875

Winters City Council Meeting
City Council Chambers

318 First Street

Tuesday, March 7, 2017

Jo/?n W. Donlevy, Jr., City Manager
Ethan Walsh, City Attorney

Nanci Mitts, City Clerk

5:30 D.m. - Executive Session

AGENDA

Safe Harbor for Closed Session - Pursuant to Government Code Section
54954.5

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 - Public Employee Performance
Evaluation - City Manager

6:30 p.m. - Regular Session

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE - The numerical order of items on this agenda is for convenience
of reference. Items may be taken out of order upon request of the Mayor or
Councilmembers. Public comments time may be limited and speakers will be
asked to state their name.

Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Approval of Agenda



Winters City Council Agenda
Regular Meeting of March 7. 2017 Page - 2 -

COUNClLiSTAFF COMMFNTc;

PUBLIC COMMENTS

At this time, any member of the public may address the City Council on matters,
which are listed on this agenda. Citizens should reserve their comments for
matter listed on this agenda at the time the item is considered by the Council. An
exception is made for members of the public for whom it would create a hardship
to stay until their item is heard. Those individuals may address the item after the
public has spoken on issues that are not listed on the agenda. Presentations
may be limited to accommodate all speakers within the time available. Public
comments may also be continued to later in the meeting should the time allotted
for public comment expire.

CONSENT CALENDAR
All matters listed under the consent calendar are considered routine and non-
controversial, require no discussion and are expected to have unanimous
Council support and may be enacted by the City Council in one motion in the
form listed below. There will be no separate discussion of these items.
However, before the City Council votes on the motion to adopt, members of the
City Council, staff, or the public may request that specific items be removed from
the Consent Calendar for separate discussion and action. Items(s) removed will
be discussed later in the meeting as time permits.

A. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Winters City Council Held on
Tuesday, February 21, 2017 (pp. 5-8)

8. Cal Fire Grant Award Acceptance-Golden Bear Pre-plan (pp. 9-18)
C. SACOG MOU and CalTrans Agreement for 1-505 Overpass Study

Report (pp. 19-48)

PRESENTATIONS

None

DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. 2015-2016 CAFR (Comprehensive Annual Financial Report)
(Report Under Separate Cover and on the City's Website here)
(pp. 49-52)

City of Winters



Winters City Council Agenda
Regular Meeting of March 7, 2017 Page - 3 -

CITY OF WINTERS AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE WINTERS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

1. None

CITY MANAGER REPORT

INFORMATION ONLY

ADJOURNMENT

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing agenda for the March 7,
2017 regular meeting of the Winters City Council was posted on the City of
Winters website at www.citvofwinters.orq and Councilmembers were notified via
e-mail of its' availability. A copy of the foregoing agenda was also posted on the
outside public bulletin board at City Hall, 318 First Street on March 2, 2017, and
made available to the public during normal business hours.

G. Mills, lerkan

Questions about this agenda - Please call the City Clerk's OfTice (530) 794-6701.
Agendas and staff reports are available on the city web page
www, citvofwinters. ora/administrative/admin council, htm

General Notes: Meeting facilities are accessible to persons with disabilities. To
arrange aid or services to modify or accommodate persons with disability to
participate in a public meeting, contact the City Clerk.

Staff recommendations are guidelines to the City Council. On any item, the
Council may take action, which varies from that recommended by staff.

The city does not transcribe its proceedings. Anyone who desires a verbatim
record of this meeting should arrange for attendance by a court reporter or for
other acceptable means of recordation. Such arrangements will be at the sole
expense of the individual requesting the recordation

City of Winters



Winters City Council Agenda
Regular Meeting of March 7. 2017 page - 4 -

How to obtain City Council Agendas:

View on the internet: www, citvofwtnters. ora/administrative/admin council, htm
Any attachments to the agenda that are not available online may be viewed at
the City Clerk's Office or locations where the hard copy packet is available.

Email Subscription: You may contact the City Clerk's Office to be placed on the
list. An agenda summary is printed in the Winters Express newspaper.

City Council agenda packets are available for review or copying at the following
locations:

Winters Library - 708 Railroad Avenue
City Hall - Finance Office -318 First Street
During Council meetings - Right side as you enter the Council Chambers

City Council meetings are televised live on City of Winters Government Channel 20 (availat>le to those who
subscribe to cable television) and replayed following the meeting.

Wednesday at 10:00 a.m.

Videotapes of City Council meetings are available for review at the Winters Branch of the Yolo County Library.

City of Winters



CITY OF

c a c ( / o t n a
Est. 1675

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Winters City Council
Held on February 21, 2017

Mayor Wade Cowan called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

Present: Council Members Harold Anderson, Bill Biasi, Jesse Loren, Pierre
Neu and Mayor Wade Cowan.

Absent: None

Staff: City Attorney Ethan Walsh, City Clerk Nanci Mills, Economic
Development/Housing Manager Dan Maguire, Director of Financial
Management Shelly Gunby, Environmental Services Manager
Carol Scianna, and Management Analyst Dagoberto Fierros.

Tina Lowden led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Approval of Agenda: Mayor Wade Cowan recommended moving Consent Item F
to Discussion Item 2. Motion by Council Member Neu, second by Council
Member Biasi to approve the agenda with said change. Motion carried with the
following vote:

AYES: Anderson, Biasi, Loren, Neu, Mayor Cowan
NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS

PUBLIC COMMENTS: Tina Lowden, Niemann Street, talked about the current
Waste Management contract and provided a worksheet outlining the possible



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the
Winters City Council Held on February 21, 2017 Page - 2 -

future problems and concerns from the seniors in the community that should be
addressed.

David Springer, 200 Madrone Court, stated his Involvement with the Valley Clean
Energy Alliance and would like to be a resource for the City Council.

CONSENT CALENDAR

A. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Winters City Council Held on
Thursday, February/, 2017

B. Street Closure Request and Amplified Sound Permit Application for
a Coffee Festival to be Held on Saturday, March 11 , 2017 from
10am to 5pm Submitted by Steady Eddy's Coffee House

C. Additional Funds for Well 9 Test Hole Drilling
D. BSK Amendment No. 4 - Conservation Easement Monitoring
E. Contract for Re-Design for Walnut Lane Roundabout
F. Letter of Support for Nature Park Phase 3 Restoration Project for

Army Corp Permit (Moved to Discussion Item 2)
G. Resolution 2017-10. a Resolution of the City Council of the City of

Winters Approving the Purchase of a Chevrolet Tahoe

City Clerk Nanci Mills gave a brief overview and confirmed that Item F has been
moved to Discussion Item 2.

Council Member Anderson requested to recuse himself for Item B due to a
possible conflict of interest. Motion by Council Member Loren, second by
Council Member Neu approve Items A, C, D, E, and G on the Consent Calendar.
Motion carried with the following vote:

AYES: Council Members Anderson, Blasi, Loren, Neu, and Mayor Cowan
NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

Motion by Council Member Loren, second by Council Member Biasi to approve
Item B. Motion carried with the following vote:

AYES: Council Members Biasi, Loren, Neu, and Mayor Cowan
NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: Council Member Anderson

PRESENTATIONS

City of Winters



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the
Winters City Council Held on February 21. 2017 Page - 3 ~

DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 2017-02, an
Ordinance Amending Section 17.200.080 Subsection (B)(2)(b) to
the Winters Municipal Code To Provide That Silent Second
Promissory Notes Executed Pursuant to the City's Inclusionary
Housing Ordinance Shall Accrue Simple Interest at an Annual Rate
of Three Percent

Economic Development/Housing Manager Dan Maguire gave an overview.

Mayor Cowan opened the public hearing at 6:53 p.m. and closed the public
hearing at 6:53 p.m. with no public comment.

Motion by Council Member Biasi, second by Council Member Anderson to waive
the second reading and adopt Ordinance 2017-02, amending Section 17.200.080
in the Winters Municipal Code to amend the rate for Promissory notes from
accruing at the local agency investment fund rate to a simple interest rate. Motion
carried with the following vote:

AYES: Council Members Anderson, Biasi, Loren, Neu, and Mayor Cowan
NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

2. Letter of Support for Nature Park Phase 3 Restoration Project for
Army Corp Permit (Moved from Consent Item F)

Environmental Services Manager Carol Scianna gave an overview.

Jeff Tempest, 24 East Main, stated his concerns with Nature Park Phase 3
Restoration Project.

David Springer, 200 Madrone Court, gave an overview with his involvement with
the Putah Creek Committee and requested that the City Council not approve the
issuance of a letter of support to the Army Corp of Engineers.

Motion by Council Member Biasi, second by Council Member Neu to approve the
recommendations made by staff to authorize the City Manager to write a letter in
support to the Army Corp of Engineers for the Nature Park Phase 3 Restoration
Project. Motion carried with the following vote:

AYES: Council Members Anderson, Biasi, Loren, Neu, and Mayor Cowan
NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

City of Winters



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the
Winters City Council Held on February 21. 2017 Page -4-

CITY MANAGER REPORT: Director of Financial Management Shelly Gunby
stated that the City improved from an A- to an A rating from S&P on our tax
allocation refund bonds.

ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Cowan adjourned the meeting at 7:10 p.m in memory
of Alfredo Rodriguez.

Wade Cowan, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Nanci G. Mills, City Clerk

City of Winters



u

CITY OF

o :t 01 i r/

Est. 1875

TO:

DATE:

THROUGH:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Council Members

March 7. 2017 A

John W. Donlevy, Jr. City Manager/ jlU
Greg Lewis, Fire

Gal Fire Grant Award Acceptance, Golden Bear Pre-plan

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt the attached resolution accepting the $25,500 Gal Fire State Responsibility Area
Fire Prevention Fund and Tree Mortality Grant Program award.

BACKGROUND;

The Gal Fire State Responsibility Area Fire Prevention Fund (SRAFPF) and Tree
Mortality (TM) Grant Program has $15.75 million available for projects that focus on
supporting local efforts to remove dead or dying trees, reducing hazardous fuel
(vegetation), fire prevention education and fire prevention planning.

The primary goal of the Program is to provide financial resources to local fire agencies
with State Responsibility Areas (SRA) within their jurisdictions for fire prevention
programs, education, planning and fuel reduction to reduce the risk of fire ignition and
spread in and adjacent to communities.

The Fire Department has applied for and been selected to receive a $25,500 Gal Fire
SRAFPF/TM grant for the purpose of developing a Gommunity Wildfire Protection Plan
for the areas known as Golden Bear and Positas. The document will be known as the

Golden Bear Pre-plan.

Both of these rural communities are in SRA and were threatened by the 2015 Monticello
Incident and the 2016 Gold Incident. Providing a comprehensive plan will provide the
area with a systematic and strategic plan for wildfire response, hazard identification &
mitigation, community preparedness and structure protection. Our plan will also include
public education, access and egress assessment, water supplies and a communication



pfan.

It is anticipated this project will be completed in phases with grant funds being the
primary financial resource over a 2-3 year period.

The Fire Department is bringing this item forward to Council in order to seek a formal
acceptance of this grant award and approval of the necessary budget amendment.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The Fire Department will participate in the cost of this phase of the project by providing
$1,500 out of its operating budget to bring the total first phase investment to $27,000.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution 2017-09

2. Gal Fire SRAFPF/TM Grant Application
3. Cal Fire SRAFPF/TM Award Letter

10



Resolution 2017-09

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WINTERS ACCEPTING
A GRANT FROM CAL FIRE IN THE AMOUNT OF $25,500 WITH MATCHING FUNDS
IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,500 FOR A TOTAL FIRST PHASE COST OF $27,000 FOR
THE DEVELOPMENT OF A COMMUNITY WILDFIRE PROTECTION PLAN FOR THE

COMMUNITIES OF GOLDEN BEAR AND POSITAS

WHEREAS, the City of Winters Fire Department applied for a Cal Fire State
Responsibility Area Fire Prevention Fund (SRAFPF) and Tree Mortality (TM) Grant to
fund the creation of a Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) for the communities
of Golden Bear and Positas; and

WHEREAS , the goal of the program is to provide funds to local fire agencies, with State
Responsibility Areas (SRA), for fire prevention programs, education, planning and fuel
reduction to reduce the risk of fire ignition and spread in and adjacent to communities;
and

WHEREAS, the Fire Department has identified the Golden Bear and Positas
communities as high risk areas that were recently threatened by the 2015 Monticello
and 2016 Cold incidents; and

WHEREAS, the Fire Department submitted an application for funds and was recently
selected for an award of $25,500; and

WHEREAS, the City of Winters will allocate funds in the amount of $1,500 for a total
first phase cost of $27,000; and

WHEREAS, estimated fund allocations will be as follows;
a) $15,000 for a CWPP consultant
b) $12,000 for GIS development map products

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Winters, that

1. The City Manager is authorized to accept the grant from Cal Fire on behalf of the
City.

2. The City Manager authorizes the Director of Financial Management the authority
to sign Grant related documents.

3. The Fire Chief is directed to develop a Community Wildfire Protection Plan for
the communities of Golden Bear and Positas.

4. A budget amendment to 101-54419-310 of $1,500 for the City match required by
the grant.

11



DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED this 7'" day of March, 2017 by the fallowing vote

Ayes:
Noes:

Absent:

Abstain:

CITY OF WINTERS

ATTEST:

Mayor, Wade Cowan

Nanci G Mills. City Clerk

12



California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (CAL FIRE)
SRAFPF & TM Grant Application

Fiscal Year 2016-17 Funding Opportunity

Please fill out this form completely. Be sure to saveacopy of this form for your records. Submit 1 printed copy with original signature(s)
and 1 electronic copy and all supporting materials to: California Department of Forestry and Fire Proteaion, Attention: Grants
Management Unit - SRAFPF & TM Grant, P.O. Box 944246, Sacramento, CA 94244-2460. E-mail an electronic copy to
CALFIRE.Grants@fire.ca.gov, Be sure to include all attachments.

Please complete the project identification information.

Is your project tree mortality related? C" Yes (• No

Is your project in the State Responsibility Area? (• Yes r No

1. Project Tracking #: 16-LNU-l 063 CalMapperlD:

Project Name/Title: Golden Bear Pre-Plan

County: Yolo CAL FIRE Unit/Contract County:LNU - Sonoma-Lake Napa Unit
Please use this 3-letter Unit identifier for file

naming

(see questions 5 & 14)

2. Sponsoring Organization:

Organization Type: Local Fire Serv

Winters Fire Department

ice If Other, Please specify:

Project Manager rrtle:

First Name:Ron

Fire Captain

Last Name: Karlen

Address 1:

Address 2:

700 Main Street

City: Winters State: California Zip Code: 95694

Phone Number:

Email Address:

530-795-4131

art.mendoza@wintersfire.org

Secondary Phone Number:

Fax Number:

3. For which activity is funding being requested?

Planning

If Other, Please specify

4. Grant Period: Please provide the estimated start date and completion date for your project. Projects MUST be completed by
March 15,2019. Note that final billing Is due 30 days after project completion. Please use MM/DDATYV format.

Project Start Date: 01/16/2017 Project Completion Date: 12/31/2018

Tracking #: 16-LNU-1063

Project Name: Golden Bear Pre-Plan
Page 1 of 4

13



5. Project Location: identify a central point that identifies the general area of project activities. Enter the information in NAD 83 -
degrees, minutes and seconds in whole numbers. Enter Longitude as a positive number.

Latitude N 38 29 42 Longitude W 122 '□'B

Latitude must be between 32 and 42 degrees. Longitude must be between 114 and 125 degrees. Latitude and Longitude minutes and
seconds must be between 0 and 60. For planning or public education projects, use a central point in the SRA for the general area covered by
the project.

Please attach a Project map in PDF format with geographic information describing your project location. TTie map should show the
surrounding area in relation to the project. File naming convention: Features should be named with the Tracking # and Feature Type
Example: IB-UUU-XXXX-MAP.pdf

"Project Area" is the general area where project activities will reduce wildfire risk and/or damage. All projects must have a project area. For
planning or public education grants or other projects that don't have well-defined boundaries, provide a map that generally covers the area.
For example, for a county-wide public education project, the map should identify the populated portion of the SRA in the county.

6. Project Area Statistics:
For all projeas, give an estimate of the project area size and include an estimate of the number of habitable structures impacted by the
projea. Provide the size of the treatment area for projects that include fuels treatment.

Habitable Dwellings (# of dwellings):

Project Area (acres):

Fuels Treatment Area (acres):

100

2,400

7. SRA Fire Hazard Severity Zones (FHSZ):
What SRA Fire Hazard Severity Zones (FHSZ) are in the project area? SRA Fire Hazard Severity Zone ratings are available at:
httD://calfire.ca.aov/fire orevention/fire prevention witdland zones.php

Please provide an approximate number of acres or percentage of the project area in each zone.

FHSZ Rating

Very High

High

Moderate

Non SRA
(Federal or Local Area)

TOTAL

Acres

2,400

Percent

480 20

1,920 80

100

%

%

%

%

%

Acres Note: Total acres must be the same as Item 6 Project Area (Acres).
Percent Note: Total % must be 100%

Tracking#: 16-LNU-1063

Project Name: Golden Bear Pre-Plan Page 2 of 4

14



8. Limiting Factors:
Are there any existing forest or land management plans; Conservation Easements; Covenant Conditions & Restrictions (CC&R's); matters
related to zoning; use restrictions, or other factors that can or will limit the fire prevention proposed activity?

□ If checked, describe existing plan(s) and the limitations, if any, in the attached Scope of Work.

9. Timber Harvest Plans:
For fuel reduction projects, is there a timber harvesting document on any portion of the proposed project area for which a "Notice of
Completion" has not been filed with CAL FIRE?

□ If checked, provide the THP Identification number and describe the relationship to the project in the attached Scope of Work document.

THP ID Number:

10. Community at Risk: Is the project associated with a community that is listed as a Community At Risk? See
http://osfm.fire.ca.qov/fireDlan/flreDlanninQ communities at rlsk.Dhp

If so, what is the name of the community?
If none, enter "none". None

Number of Communities In the project area:

11. Project Budget:
What Is the proposed budget? Please include a discussion of the project budget in the Scope of Work and enter the amount from the
Project Budget workbook (.xls).

Budget Item

Grant Portion of project (S)

Equipment Purchases ($)

Partners {$)

Total Project Budget ($)

Amount

$25,500.00

$1,500.00

$27000.00

12. Local Wildland Fire Risk Reduction Plans:
Is the project in, consistent with, or build on a larger plan that deals with the risk and potential impact to habitable structures in the SRA
covered by this project? If so, discuss in the Scope of Work. Select all that apply.

^ CAL FIRE Unit Strategic Fire Plan

^ County Fire Department Strategic Fire Plan

^ Local Fire Department Plan

13 Homeowners' Association Plan

□ Fire Safe Council Action Plan

Q FIREWISE Community Assessment

□ Community Wildfire Proteaion Plan

Q Other Local Plan (Identify in Scope of Work)

Tracking#: 16-LNU-1063

Project Name: Golden Bear Pre-Plan Page 3 of 4

15



13. CEQA Compliance:
Describe how compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) will be achieved in the Scope of Work. Is there an existing
(CEQA) document that addresses this project or can be used to meet CEQA requirements?

For planning, education and other projects thatPlease indicate the CEQA document type:

Document Identification Number

are exempt from CEQA, select "Not Applicable".

14. Application Submission:
NOTE TO APPLICANT: If you modify the language contained in any part of this document, other than to fill In the blanks, or to provide
requested information, your application Mi be rejected.
Note: Replace XXXX in the file name with the project's ID Number-
Note: Replace UUU in the file name with the 3-ierter identifier for the Unit where the project Is located. Unit identifiers are listed in the instructions for this application form.

US Mail Email Attachments

□ □ Application Form (.pdf)

□ □ Scope of Work

□ □ Project Budget

□ □ Project Map (.pdf)

□ □ Articles of Incorporation (.pdf)

File Name

16-LNU-1063-Application.pdf

ie-LNU-1063-SOW.doc

16-LNU-1063-Budget.xls

16-LNU-1()63-MAP.pdf

16-LNU-1063-AOI.pdf

I certify that the above and attached information Is true and correct:

Original Signature Required: Grantee's Authorized Representative Date Signed

Printed Name RON KARLEN Title GRANT MANAGER

Executed on: Sep28,2016 at Winters

Date City

Print Form

Please fill out this form completely. Be sure to save a copy of this form for your records. Submit one (1) electronic copy in fillable
PDF format with all supporting materials to CAI^IRE, Grantsjglreca.gov. Please use "SRAFPF/TM Project Application" in the
E-mail subject line and include yourself as a cc. Your CO will be proof of your submittal. In addition, submit one (1) hard copy
with signatures and all supporting materials to ; California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection, Attention: Grants
Management Unit - SRAFPF & TM Grant, P.O. Box 944246, Sacramento, OA 94244-2460. Hard copy will need to be
postmarked no later than September 28, 2016. Electronic copy must be submitted no later than September 28, 2016 at 3:00 pm.
Applications postmarked after this date and time will be considered late.

If you would like to mail the hard copy via expedited/ovemight mail, please E-mail CALFIRE.Grants@fire.ca.qov for the physical
mailing address.

Tracking#: 16-LNU-1063

Project Name: Golden Bear Pre-Plan
Page 4 of 4

16



STATE OF CALIFORNIA-NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY Edmund G. Btwn Jr., Governor

DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION
P.O. Box 944246

SACRAMENTO. OA 94244-2460
(916)655-7772
Wet^: www.fire.ca.gov

December 2, 2016

Ron Karlen

Winters Fire Department
700 Main Street

Winters, Califomla 95694

RE: PROJECT APPLICATION FOR THE STATE RESPONSIBILITY AREA FIRE
PREVENTION FUND (SRAFPF) AND TREE MORTALITY (TM) GRANT
PROGRAM

Dear Applicant:

The Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (GAL FIRE) is pleased to inform you that
your application for the grant project entitled Golden Bear Pre-Plan (16-LNU-1063) has
been selected for funding in the amount of $25,500.00.

This grant award is contingent upon receipt of final documents. You will receive the full
agreement with instructions via email to arLmendoza@wlntBr8fire.org by December 23,
2016. Please refer to the SRAFPF procedural guide for a complete listing of documents
that must be submitted. If the email address identified above is incorrect, or if you have not
received a grant agreement by the date indicated, please contact the Grants Management
Unit at GALFIRE.Grants@fire.ca.aov.

All documents must be returned to GAL FIRE no later than January 31, 2017. Failure to
return documents by this date may result in loss of funding. It is important that you do not
start on your grant project until you have received a confirmation that your grant
agreement has been fully executed.

We look fon/vard to working with you on your grant project. If you have any additional
questions, please contact Megan Scheeline at (707) 967-1428.

Sincerely,

/u
JOEL R. VELA

Deputy Chief
SRA Fire Prevention Fund Program Manager

The Department of Foresfry and Fire Protection serves and safeguards the people andprotects the property and resources of Califorrtsa. "

—  —



STATE OF CALIFORNIA-NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY Edmund G. Bmwn Jr.. Govwnof

DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION
P.O Box 944246

SACRAMENTO, OA 94244-2460
(916)650-7772

WtiMita www.fire.ca.90v

December 20,2016
Ron Karlen

Winters Fire Department
700 Main Street

Winters, CA 95694

5GSI6159; Golden Bear Pre-PIao

This agreement cannot be considered binding on either party until approved by appropriate authorized CAL FIRE
designee. No services should be provided prior to approval, as the State is not obligated to make any payments on any
Agreement prior to final approval FAILURE TO RETURN ALL DOCUMENTS BY DATE BELOW MAY RESULT
IN LOSS OF FUNDING.

Please contact Megan Scheeline at (707) 967-1428 if you have questions concerning services to be performed.
Please contact Bobby Nguyen at (916) 651*6620 if you have any administrative questions or concerns.

1. S Full grant agreement including terms and conditions, project grant application form, scope of work, budget and map
enclosed. Print (single sided) and return three (3) sets of agreements with original signatures in blue ink. In addition,
please return the forms below, as applicable to your entity, to be received by CAL FIRE no later than January 31, 2017.
• Attachment 5 - Std. 204 Payee Data Record httD://www.documents.dgs.ca-gov/dirs/fhin/pfH7gtH?04.Ddf
• Attachment 7 - Board Resolution or Attesting Document granting authority to sign (non-profit and local entity applicants)
Return all originals and requested documents for further processing to:
Department of Forestry and Fire Protection
Attention; Grants Management Unit/SRA Fire Prevention Fund Grant
P.O. Box 944246

Sacramento, CA 94244-2460
As CAL FIRE has a limited time to obligate these funds, it is highly recommended that all originab are sent via
overnight mail to the following physical address:
1300 U Street

Sacramento, CA 95818

2. n Please initial change(s) made on all copies of the agreement on page(s) as marked.

3. n Enclosed for your record is one fiilly executed copy of the agreement referenced above. When billing for services
performed under this agreement, your invoices must reference the agreement number above and be submitted to the
contract manager.

Thank you,

Bobby Nguyen
Grants Analyst
Grants Management Unit

Enclosures

The Department of Forestry and Fire Protection ser\es and safeguards the people andprotects the property and resources ofCalifornia. "

—  T8-



CITY OF

t! a

ERS
^ n ( a

Est. 1875

CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

TO; Honorable Mayor and CouncilmemtMrre

THROUGH: John W. Donlevy, Jr., City Manage^ ̂
Carol Scianna, Environmental Services ManagerFROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT

March 7, 2017

SACOG MOU and CalTrans Agreement for 1-505 Overpass Study Report

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the City Manager
to execute contracts between Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG), the City
and Yolo County and also execute a Cooperative Agreement between the Department of
Transportation (CalTrans) and the City to complete the Project Study Report- Project
Development Support (PSR-PDS) to enable a Project Initiation Document (PID) to be
developed for improvements in the City on Grant Ave/SR 128 beginning at El Rio Villa through
to Railroad Ave,, including options for pedestrian/bike overcrossing of Interstate 1-505.

BACKGROUND: The proposed future projects will construct complete streets improvements
along the corridor to accommodate all modes of travel. There is an obvious need to create a
safe pedestrian/ bike travel way for the Winters community from the El Rio Villa (ERV)
neighborhood into the Winters City limits. There currently is only a very narrow and
unprotected sidewalk that many residents are forced to use, in order to get from ERV into
town.

This Community Design Grant will allow the City and the County to take the initial steps to look
at viable options for the development and eventual construction of a safe travel path between
ERV and town. The main tasks to be completed are: environmental constraints, permits
required, structures, drainage, landscape, construction staging and sequencing, utility
relocation, right of way issues, local and regional input and impacts on surrounding properties.
The City has opted to work with Caltrans to complete this PSR-PSD, since It is entirely on the
SRI 28, and staff has determined that working directly with Caltrans rather than another
contractor would be the most cost effective.

19



The City and the County were each awarded $100,000 In grant funding to accomplish this
task; there is also a 10% match of up to $10,000 for each agency. The County has elected to
act as a pass through for their share of the grant with the City taking the lead on the project.

FISCAL IMPACT: $10,000 from Street Construction Funds

20



SACOG 2016 Programming Round Funding (Round 7)

Memorandum of Understanding
Between the Sacramento Area Council of Governments ("SACOG"), the

City of Winters, and Yolo County
For the Project Known as "Grant Avenue/SR 128/Russell Boulevard Corridor

Improvements Project Study Report — Project Development Support"

This Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU" or "Agreement") is made by and between the
Sacramento Area Council of Governments ("SACOG"), the City of Winters ("City" or
"Managing Recipient") and the County of Yolo ("County" or "Pass-through Recipient")
effective , 2017. SACOG, the City and the County are collectively referred to
herein as the "parties" and individually as "party."

WHEREAS, the City of Winters and Yolo County are joining efforts to prepare a Project Study
Report - Project Development Support for Grant Avenue/State Route 128/Russell Boulevard
Corridor Improvements ("Project"); and

WHEREAS, the City of Winters and Yolo County each received a SACOG Community Design
Program grant in the amount of $100,000, and wish to combine their SACOG awarded funds, to
support the Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:
1. Introduction: Project Description and Scope of Work

A. Program Description:
The SACOG Community Design Funding Program (henceforth referred to as
"Program") is intended to provide financial assistance to local governmental agencies
that are planning or constructing projects that are consistent with the SACOG
identified guidelines and principles. Local agencies submit project applications to
SACOG and SACOG awards f\mding by a regional selection process.
As noted in the Recitals above, the City of Winters and Yolo County were each
awarded $100,000 by SACOG for this Project.

The Project is receiving funds from SACOG-managed local funding sources,
meaning these funds bring no requirement to federalize the Project. As such, the
Project is not subject to administrative review by the California Department of
Transportation ("CalTrans"), but rather solely by SACOG. However, SACOG will
review any delay in the Project, as noted in Section 4.b below. SACOG must approve
of the Project Scope of Work, milestones, deliverables and timelines, and shall review
and approve all invoices before the City, as the Managing Recipient described below,
will be reimbursed.

21



The Program is set up as a reimbursable program, meaning the City as the Managing
Recipient will be reimbursed for eligible Project costs after SACOG receives,
reviews, and approves invoices covering those expenditures. In signing this
Agreement, the City certifies that it can fund the Project on their own until the City as
the Managing Recipient seeks reimbursement from SACOG. The City shall carry the
expenses until it invoices SACOG for expenditures. SACOG will reimburse the City
within 45 days of receiving and approving an invoice that is determined to meet the
terms of this MOU.

B. This MOU establishes that Yolo County ("Pass-through Recipient") is transferring
the $100,000 grant it was awarded, plus all administrative, financial and project
management responsibilities, to the City of Winters ("Managing Recipient") and that
the City of Winters is accepting this transfer of responsibility.

Managing Recipient Project Manager and SACOG Program Coordinator:
The following persons shall serve as the point of contact for all communications
unless mutually agreed in writing that another individual may represent either the
Managing Recipient or SACOG.

The Project Manager for both the Managing Recipient and Pass-through Recipient is:

Carol Scianna

Environmental Services Manager
City of Winters
318 First Street

Winters, CA 95694

Phone #530-794-6715

carol.scianna@cityofwinters.org

With copies to:

Panos Kokkas

Yolo County Director of Public Works
292 West Beamer Street

Woodland, CA 95695
(530) 666-8857

SACOG's Program Coordinator is:

Gregory R. Chew
Community Design Program
Sacramento Area Council of Governments
1415 L Street, Suite 300

Sacramento, CA 95814
gchew@sacog.org
Phone 916-340-6227

22



D. Scope of Work. Deliverables. Milestones and Timeline:
The attached Exhibit "A" describes the detailed Scope of Work to be performed by
the Managing Recipient as well as the Project milestones, deliverables, and timeline
for the Project, and is incorporated herein by this reference. SACOG, in reviewing
invoices, will verify the work completed and deliverables against the terms of Exhibit
"A."

E. Project Application and Amount:
The Recipients submitted one application to SACOG for fiinding under the Program
(hereinafter "Application"). A copy of the two Recipients' Project Application may
be found attached in Exhibit B. The Project Application was evaluated through a
competitive regional selection process and the Recipients were each awarded
$100,000, for a combined not-to-exceed amount of $200,000 to be provided to the
Managing Recipient under the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The
Recipients have each pledged $10,000 (which includes staff time with the respective
overhead cost), for a combined total of $20,000 in matching funds, and hereby certify
that these funds are available to complete the Project scope. If the Recipients incur
costs and expenses beyond the awarded amount, the Recipients are responsible to
cover those costs and expenses in a manner to be determined by the Recipients. The
Recipients acknowledge that SACOG has no obligation to reimburse the Recipients
for any costs exceeding $200,000.

F. Project Description:

Based on the submitted Project Application, the general purpose and scope of the
Project is to prepare a Project Study Report-Project Development Support (PSR-PDS)
to establish alternatives and a preferred option to facilitate safe pedestrian and bicycle
access along Grant Avenue/State Route 128 (SR 128)/Russell Boulevard between the
El Rio Villa housing community and the City of Winters. The project will: (1)
identify construction, right of way, and support costs; (2) determine the appropriate
level of environmental review and Caltrans approval; and (3) identify future fimding
sources to advance the Project.

G. Payment:

As the work is satisfactorily performed and funds are available, SACOG will
reimburse the Managing Recipient, on behalf of the Recipients, for Project costs
approved by SACOG. The Managing Recipient shall not be paid in advance of work
completed. Conditions for reimbursement are identified in Section 3 below.

2. Performance

A. Notice to Proceed:

The Recipients may not start reimbursable Project activities until this Agreement is
signed by SACOG and the Recipients. SACOG's Program Manager shall issue a
vmtten Notice to Proceed ("NTP") (e-mail acceptable) to Recipients' Project

23



Manager after this Agreement is fully signed. The NTP shall contain the effective
date for reimbursable activities, which date shall coincide with the date on which the
NTP is issued.

B. Recipient Accountabilitv Duties:

The Managing Recipient, on behalf of the Recipients, shall comply with the following
accountability duties. The Recipients acknowledges that a failure to perform these
duties may result in the DISQUALIFICATION of the Managing Recipient from
receiving future funding through SACOG as further specified below. It is incumbent
upon Recipients, particularly the Recipients' Project Manager, to understand these
accountability duties and perform them throughout the term of the MOU or until the
Project is completed, whichever comes first. SACOG will NOT remind Recipients to
perform these duties.

(1) Staff Requirements - A Managing Recipient staff person who is familiar with
the contents of Recipients' Application and has been assigned to oversee the delivery
of this Project. Managing Recipient acknowledges that ifit does not maintain an
assigned, qualified staff person or consultant to manage the delivery of the Project
pursuant to the Recipients' Application, SACOG reserves the right to withdraw
funding for this Project.

(2) Funding Cycle Deadline - The Project as set forth in the Application, including
the scope, timeline and deliverables, must be delivered no later than the current
flmding round cycle deadline of December 31, 2018. The Managing Recipient
acknowledges that, if it does not deliver the specified Project on the agreed to
timeline and prior to the funding cycle deadline, the Managing Recipient may be
penalized in future funding cycles of SACOG's four regional funding programs.

(3) Status Reports - All Round 7 Community Design recipients are required to
submit quarterly status reports. Following issuance of the NTP, the Managing
Recipient shall provide the SACOG Program Manager with a brief, written (e-mail
acceptable) quarterly status report on the Project. The due date for each is the fu^t
day of January, April, July and October of each year that the Project has started until
its completion or the termination of this MOU. This status report may be as brief as
one or two paragraphs, depending upon the complexity and status of the particular
Project. If the designated Project Manager changes during the course of the Project,
it is the responsibility of Managing Recipient to convey this status report
requirement and all other requirements of this MOU to the new Project Manager.
The Project Manager shall not change unless mutually agreed upon by SACOG and
Managing Recipient in writing. The Managing Recipient acknowledge that a failure
to provide quarterly Project status reports to SACOG may result in the Managing
Recipient failing to qualify for future funding cycles of SACOG's regional funding
programs, including the Program. The responsibility of submitting the brief status
report to SACOG lies solely with Managing Recipients' identified Project Manager
listed above.

24



C. Overall Performance:

The Recipients recognize that SACOG considers the Managing Recipient's
performance on this Project a factor in qualifying the Managing Recipient for
proposed future projects for any other current or future SACOG funding program
(e.g., Community Design, Bicycle/Pedestrian, Regional/Local, Air Quality programs).

D. Recipients Responsibilities:

After the NTP has been issued the Managing Recipient is required to perform the
accountability requirements in Section 2.B., including, but not limited to, submission
of a brief quarterly Project status report. The Managing Recipient shall complete the
Project, in accordance with Exhibit "A", by no later than the expiration of this
Agreement.

E. SACOG Responsibilities:

SACOG shall:

(1) Review progress reports and invoices promptly, and contact the Managing
Recipient in a timely manner to discuss any issues. Invoices will not be approved
until issues have been satisfactorily resolved.

(2) Remit invoice for payment promptly after approving invoices.

(3) Verify final Project completion as appropriate to close out final completion and
payment.

3. Reimbursement

A. Invoices and Pavments:

The Managing Recipient, on behalf of the Recipients, shall submit regular Project
invoices to SACOG for reimbursement following issuance of the NTP, but shall
submit such invoices no more frequently than once a month and no less frequently
than once a quarter. Each invoice shall contain a one-page progress report narrative
(bullet format acceptable) of work completed to date along with reference to the
scope of work, timeline, milestones, and deliverables in Exhibit "A." The Managing
Recipient shall clearly identify which of the activities have been performed in the
period for which reimbursement is being requested. The Managing Recipient may
include copies of any deliverables or photographs of physical construction, as
applicable, to provide documentation of work completed.

B. Travel Reimbursement:

The Managing Recipient shall comply with, and shall require subcontractors to
comply with, the requirements for non-state employee travel and subsistence (per
diem) expenses found in the California Department of Transportation ("Caltrans")
Travel Guide, Non-State Employee Travel (referencing the current California
Department of Personnel Administration rules) at the following link:

25



http://\v^\"vv.dot.ca.eo\ "hu. asc/travel/index.htm. Lodging rates shall not exceed rates
authorized to be paid non-state employees unless written verification is supplied that
such rates are not commercially available to the Recipients and/or their
subcontractors at the time and location required as specified in the Caltrans Travel
Guide Exception Process.

C. Evaluation of Invoices:

SACOG will review invoices in the order received from all Program projects. Upon
the review of each invoice received, SACOG will evaluate the degree of progress
being made in comparison to the scope of work in Exhibit A, and may ask the
Managing Recipient, on behalf of the Recipients, to provide additional information to
support an invoice. SACOG may withhold payment of a full or partial invoice amount
if it believes insufficient evidence has been provided to justify the amount requested.

D. Methods of Pavment:

After the SACOG Program Manager has approved an invoice, it will be submitted to
the SACOG Finance Department for processing. Reimbursement will be made within
45 days of invoice approval and will be made by check, unless an electronic fund
transfer arrangement has been made in advance.

E. Retention and Completion:

SACOG reserves the right to withhold up to 10% of the awarded amount until it can
verify the Project is completed as described in Exhibit "A" and approved by SACOG.

4. Compledon; Termination

A. Agreement Expiration Date:

All reimbursable expenses must be incurred before December 31, 2018. The
expiration date of this Agreement is March 31, 2019, which is the final date for
submitting invoices to SACOG, and the date when all projects funded in the 2015
Round 7 Program funding cycle must be completed. Reimbursement will be made as
outlined in Section l.A. and Section 3.

B. Extensions:

This MOU may be extended by written agreement of the parties, but such written
agreement by SACOG may only occur by one of two ways. First, SACOG may agree
to an extension in the event that a delay is caused by SACOG, Caltrans or state or
federal agencies regarding the funding, programming or regulatory review of this
project and such delay is deemed "abnormally longer than usui" by SACOG.
Second, SACOG may agree to an extension for any other reason only by direct
approval of the SACOG Board of Directors.

C. Termination bv Recipients:

The Recipients may terminate this Agreement upon 30 days' written notice to
SACOG identifying the reason for termination. Within 10 working days of the

26



notice, the Managing Recipient, on behalf of the Recipients, shall submit an invoice
for work performed through the date of termination which shall be paid according to
the conditions in Section 3.

D. Termination bv SACQG:

The Managing Recipients' failure to perform any material obligation hereunder is a
material breach of this Agreement. SACOG shall provide the Managing Recipients'
Project Manager with written notice of any such failure and specify a reasonable
opportuiuty to cure. The Managing Recipient shall be responsible for notifying the
Pass-through Recipient of receipt of any such notice of breach. If Recipients fail to
cure a material breach after SACOG provides written notice thereof and a reasonable
opportuiuty to cure, SACOG may terminate this Agreement upon 10 days' written
notice to the Recipients' Project Manager identifying the reason for termination. The
Managing Recipient shall be responsible for notifying the Pass-through Recipient of
receipt of any notice of termination. Upon receipt of the notice of termination, the
Recipients shall immediately cease any reimbursable activities on the Project and
shall give notice to any third party working on the Project to immediately cease
reimbursable activities on the Project. Within 30 working days of receipt of the
notice of termination, the Recipients shall submit an invoice for work done through
the date of termination. Reasons for termination may include, but are not limited to;

(1) failure by the Managing Recipient to submit a progress report or invoice for two
consecutive quarters after the Notice to Proceed;

(2) if the Project falls more than 6 months behind the timeline in Exhibit A and the
Managing Recipient fail to timely inform the SACOG Program Manager; or

(3) the Managing Recipient does not respond in a timely manner to requests by
SACOG's Project Manager for information.

Reimbursable funding for the Project shall cease upon the effective date of the
termination notice.

5. General Provisions

A. Amendments:

No alteration or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in
wnting and signed by the parties hereto, and no oral understanding or agreement not
incorporated herein, shall be binding on any of the parties hereto.

B. Indemnitv:

The Managing Recipient, Pass-through Recipient and SACOG are each responsible
for their own acts and omissions. Further, each party agrees to indemnify, defend,
and hold harmless the other parties and their respective governing bodies, officers,
agents, and employees, from and against any and all actions, claims, demands, losses,
expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees and costs, damages, and liabilities,
resulting from the negligent acts or omissions or willful misconduct of the

27



indemnifying party. The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or
termination of this Agreement.

C. Audit. Records:

SACOG shall have the right to audit, or have audited by a representative agent.
Managing Recipients' use of Project funds. The Managing Recipient shall maintain
books, records, documents and other evidence (collectively "Records") pertinent to
Project work performed under this Agreement in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and practices for a minimum of three years following
completion of the Project. The Managing Recipient shall make the Records available
to SACOG or its agents upon request.

D. Notices:

All notices required or provided for under this Agreement shall be in writing and
delivered in person or by first class U.S. mail, postage prepaid, to the Project
Managers identified in Section 1 .B.

E. Integration:

This Agreement represents the entire understanding of SACOG and the Recipients as
to those matters contained herein and supersedes all prior negotiations,
representations, or agreements, both written and oral. This Agreement may not be
modified or altered except in accordance with Section 5.A.

F. Headings:

The headings of the various sections of this Agreement are intended solely for
convenience of reference and are not intended to explain, modify, or place any
interpretation upon any of the provisions of this Agreement.

G. Severabilitv:

If any term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person or
circumstance shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this
Agreement, or the application of such term or provision to persons or circumstances
other than those to which it is invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby,
and each term and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and shall be enforced to
the fullest extent permitted by law, unless the exclusion of such term or provision, or
the application of such term or provision, would result in such a material change so as
to cause completion of the obligations contemplated herein to be unreasonable.

H. Counterparts:

This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall
constitute an original, and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the
same instrument.

I. Dispute Resolution:

28



Each party hereto will notify the other parties promptly of any matters that may cause
disputes arising out of their respective rights and obligations under this Agreement
and will make every reasonable effort to settle such disputes by prompt and diligent
negotiations. If the parties are unable to resolve the dispute through negotiation, the
dispute will be sent to mediation administered by a mediator acceptable to the parties
prior to the initiation of legal action, unless delay in initiating legal action would
irrevocably prejudice one of the parties. All expenses of the mediation will be borne
by the parties equally; however, each party will bear the expense of its own counsel,
experts, witnesses, and preparation and presentation of proofs.

6. Signatories

The parties represent that the signatories to this Agreement are authorized to represent
their respective agencies and to sign this MOU.

[Signaturesfollow on the next page,]

29



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HAVE ENTERED INTO THIS
AGREEMENT:

Sacramento Area Council of Governments City of Winters

KIRKTROST

Interim Chief Executive Officer
JOHN W. DONLEVY, Jr.
City Manager

Date Date

Approved as to form:

RENNE SLOAN HOLTZMAN SAKAI LLP
Legal Counsel to SACOG

County of Yolo

(Duane Chaimberlain, Chair
(Yolo County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

Julie Dachtler, Deputy Clerk
Yolo County Board of Supervisors

By
Deputy

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Philip J. Pogledich, County Counsel

By
Ronald Martinez, Deputy

10

30



Exhibit "A"

SCOPE OF WORK

DELIVERABLES, MILESTONES, AND TIMELINE

Grant Avenue/SR 128/Russell Boulevard Corridor Improvements
Project Study Report - Project Development Support (PSR-PDS)

Background

The grant funds will be utilized to prepare a Project Study Report-Project Development Support
(PSR-PDS) for a proposed future SACOG funded project. This project will be along the Grant
Avenue/State Route 128 (SR 128)/Russell Boulevard Corridor between the El Rio Villa housing
community and the City of Winters. The future proposed project will construct complete streets
improvements along the corridor, which will provide the travelling public with access to a safe
and efficient facility that accommodates all alternative transportation modes (pedestrian, bicycle,
motor vehicle, and transit). The potential type of work will include, but will not be limited to
constructing bicycle facilities, sidewalks, curb ramps, traffic calming elements, roundabouts,
landscape elements, drainage elements, and widening of the existing SR 128/1-505 Separation
Bridge (Br No. 22-0110) or another alternative methods for pedestrians and bicycles crossing the
1-505 interchange.

In developing the project alternatives for the PSR-PDS, several key areas will be considered and
studied: environmental constraints, required permits and maintenance agreements, structures,
materials, drainage, landscape, construction staging, construction sequencing, local and regional
input, utility relocations, alignment and right-of way requirements, impacts on and access to
adjacent properties, compliance with mandatory and advisory design standards, traffic operations
including signal phasing, complete streets elements, greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, and
climate change. In addition the PSR-PDS will: (1) identify construction, right of way, and
support costs; (2) determine the appropriate level of environmental study and Caltrans approval;
(3) determine a preliminary project development schedule; and (4) identify future funding
sources to advance the project.

The scope of work and tasks to be performed for the Grant Avenue/SR 128/Russell Boulevard
Corridor Improvements PSR-PDS ("Project") are as follows:

1. Draft PSR-PDS Development (30%)
Activities include: transportation problem definition and site assessment; review existing reports
studies, and mapping; review existing survey information and right of way mapping, utility
search; review existing structure information; development of project and alternatives description

11

31



and limits for studies; prepare Caltrans functional study requests; coordinate activates with
Caltrans functions and Local agencies.

Deliverable: Initial project and alternatives description; submittal of functional study
requests; risk register and communication plan.
Timeline: June 2017

Task Cost Estimate: $53,000

SACOG Funds: $47,700
Combined Local Match: $5,300

2. Draft PSR-PDS Development (60%) Review
Activities include: alternatives development and analysis, multimodal review; preliminary
environmental analysis report; utility relocation requirements assessment; storm water/hydraulic
review; traffic and traffic management information ; identify exceptions to design standards;
preliminary materials information; preliminary structure costs; preliminary construction staging
and costs; construction sequencing, preliminary project support estimate; initial project schedule;
identify potential funding sources; Caltrans and local agency review and comments resolution.

Deliverable: completion of draft PSR-PDS (60%) review and comment resolution.
Timeline: December 2017

Cost Estimate: $113,000

SACOG Funds: $101,700
Combined Local Match: $11,300

3. 90% PSR-PDS Review - District / Local Agency
Activities include; updating PSR-PDS report and attachments to 90%; submit of 90% PSR-PDS
document to Caltrans Executive Staff and Local Agencies for review and comments. Resolve
comments and update related documents.

Deliverable: Submit 90% PSR-PDS report for review.
Timeline: February 2018

Cost Estimate: $40,000

SACOG Funds: $36,000
Combined Local Match: $4,000

4. Final PSR-PDS Approval
Activities include: final approval of PSR-PDS report by Caltrans and Local agencies.

Deliverable: Approval and distribution of PSR-PDS report. Close out K.-Phase project.
Timeline: March 2018

Cost Estimate; $14,000
SACOG Funds: $12,600

Combined Local Match: $1,400

12

32



Total Project Budget: S220,000
•  SACOG Grant maximum contribution: $200,000
• City ofWinters Matching Funds: $10,000
• Yolo County Matching Funds: $10,000

13

33



Exhibit B

Applications from City of Winters and Yolo County

(Documents attached)

14

34



CITY OF

c a c (. A & t ft I a
Itt. 1875

ERS

June 22, 2015

Greg Chew, Senior Planner
Sacramento Area Council of Governments
1415 L Street, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95814

RE: 2015 SACOG Community Design Funding Program (Round 7)
Application Letter for the Grant Ave/SR 128/Russell Blvd Corridor Improvements
Project Study Report-Project Development Support (PSR-PDS)

Dear Mr. Chew:

The City of Winters, in partnership with Yolo County, is pleased to submit an application letter
for Category 3 SACOG Community Design funding for the above-refercnced project. Each
jurisdiction is requesting $100,000 ($200,000 total) for this project since the project area
encompasses both the City and unincorporated County land. The requested information is as
follows:

1. Name of the Sponsoring Jurisd)ction(s): City of Winters and Yolo County

2. Name of the Project:

3. Category of the Project:

4. Project Manager Name:

5. Project Manager's phone/email

Grant Ave./SR 128/Russell Blvd. Corridor

Improvements PSR-PDS

Category 3

Carol Scianno

Environmental Services Manager
City of Winters

(530) 794-6715

6. If awarded, how will the Community Design funding be spent?

Funding will be utilizedfor the preparation ofa Project Study Report-Project
Development Support (PSR-PDS) to establish alternatives and a preferred option to
facilitate safe pedestrian and bicycle access along Grant Avenue/State Route 128
(SRI28)/RusseU Boulevard between the El Rio Villa housing community and the city
of Winters: to identify construction, right of way, and support costs: to determine the
appropriate level ofenvironmental review and Caltrans approval: and to identify
future funding sources to advance the project.

318 FIrtt Street

Wiotm,CA 95694

Pfaoie.S30.795.4910

Fn. 530.79SA935

COUNCIL MEMBERS

Harold Aidertoo

Wade Cowan

Pierre Neu

MAVOR

Cecilia Agular-
Curry

MAVOR PRO TEM

Woody Fridae

CITY CLERK

Naaci Millf

TREASURER

Michael Sebastian

CITY MANAGER

John W. Doolevy, Jr.

35



Thefollowing information shall be included in the PSR-PDS:

• Alignment and right-of-way requirements
• Pedestrian and bike path length

• Options for Interstate 505 (1-505) overcrossing improvements, including
modifications to existing overcrossing, construction of new pedestrian/bike over
or undercrossing.

• Access to adjacent properties

•  Impacts to adjacent properties

•  Utility relocations

•  Permitting requirements

•  Environmental constraints

•  Construction staging

•  Construction sequencing

•  Project cost estimates

• Project schedule

•  Potentialfunding sources

7. Will you be able to fully use the grant funds before December 31,2018?

Yes, it is the Intent of both the City and the Coun ty to have the PSR-PDS completed in
2016.

8. Why does this project promote the Blueprint Project?

The preparation of the PSR-PDS follows a community-based planning effort that
identified the preferred conceptual pedestrian, bike and roadway improvements for
the Grant Avenue/SR 128/Russell Boulevard Corridor from Railroad Avenue east
across the 1-505 interchange to El Rio Villa in Yolo County. This plan. The Citv of
Winters Grant Avenue/SR 128/Ru5sell Boulevard Complete Streets Concent Plan, was
completed in December 2010 and unanimously approved by the Winters City Council
in February 2011. This plan embodies SACOG's Blueprint Principle of providing
transportation choices by identifying the need and planning for an essential bicycle
and pedestrian connection between El Rio Villa and Winters. The purpose of the PSR-
PDS is to further establish alternatives and identify a preferred, feasible option to
facilitate this essential connection.

9. How much in local matching funds will be committed? What source do they come
from?

36



The total project cost is estimated to be $185,406. Both the City of Winters and Yoh
County will provide a $10,000 match ($20,000 total) in local TDA funds to the project

1. Are there any associated private and/or public development with this project?

There are no associated private and/or public development with this project

Should you rajuire additional information or have questions during your review of this letter,
please do not hesitate to contact me.

Smcerely,

Carol Scianna

Project Manager
City of Winters

CC: Panes Kokkas, P.E., Yolo County Public Worics Department
Nelia Sperka, Ponticello Enterprises, Inc.
File

37



CITY OF

ft

ERS
i ft t a

Est. 1875

June 22.2015
Greg Chew, Senior Planner
Sacramento Area Council of Governments
1415 L Street, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95814

RE: 2015 SACOG Community Design Funding Program (Round 7)
City of Winters' Co-Participation in the Grant Ave/SR 128/RusselI Blvd Corridor
Improvements PSR-PDS

Dear Mr. Chew:

The City of Winters is participating in the preparation of the above-referenced PSR-PDS. The
City will work as a partner with Yolo County on this project. The County and the City have
agreed that the City will manage the preparation of the PSR-PDS on behalf of both jurisdictions.
The estimated cost of the project is $185,406. Both the County and the City are requesting
$100,000 ($200,000 total) for the project since the project area encompasses both the City and
unincorporated County land. Both jurisdictions will provide a $10,000 match ($20,000 total) in
local TDA funds to the project.
Should you require additional information or have questions regarding this letter, please do not
hesitate to contact me at (530) 794-6715 or carol.scianna@cityofwinters.org

Sincerely,

Carol Scianna

Environmental Services Manager
City of Winters

CC: Panos Kokkas, P.E., Yolo County Public Works Department
File

318 First Street

Winters. CA 95694

Phone.S30.795.4910

Fa*. 530.795.4935

COUNCIL MEMBERS

Harold Anderson

Wade Cowan

Pierre "Ncu

MAYOR

Cecilia Aguiar-
Curry

MAYOR PRO TEM

Woody Fridae

CITY CLERK

Nancl Mills

TREASURER

Michael Sebastian

CITY MANAGER

John W. Donievy, Jr.

38



County of Yolo
SERVIC™^""^ WORKS & ENVIRONMENTAL
PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION

Taro Echlbun), AlCP
DIRECTOR

www, CA-9SR,«5«;r5M;«M775;«Xf5«J«««,«,.

June 22,2015

Mr. Greg Chew, Senior Planner
Sacramento Area Coundl of Governments
1415 L Street, Suite 300
Sacramento, OA 95814

Subject: 2^5 SACOG Design Funding Program (Round 7) Yolo Countys
Co-Partlclpatlon In the Grant Ave/SR 128mus8en Blvd Corridor
Improvements PSR-PDS

Dear Mr. Chew:

^  of the above-relerenced PSR-PDS The

juiMctlons Praparalion of the PSR-PDS on behalf of both

a™ ̂a<'"aafing» uu.uw each ($200,000 total) for the pro sot, since the project area encomoasses both tha

m. «(5301 MS«57 ,

Sincerely,

Panes Kokkas, P.E.
Assistant Director, PuWIc Works

39



03-YOL-128 PM Var

Project Number: 03 1 7000052
EA: 2H030

Agreement 03-0618

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT

Project Study Report - Project Development Support (PSR-PDS)

This Agreement, effective on , is between the State of
California, acting through its Department of Transportation, referred to as CALTRANS, and:

City of Winters, a body politic and municipal corporation or chartered city of the State of
California, referred to hereinafter as CITY.

RECITALS

1. PARTNERS are authorized to enter into a cooperative agreement for improvements to the
state highway system (SHS) per Government Code 65086.5 and Califomia Streets and

Highways Code sections 100.25.

2. CITY desires that a project initiation document (FID) be developed for complete streets
improvements in the City of Winters SR 128 (Grant Avenue) from Railroad Avenue to PM
9.9 (RTE 128-505 Sep Br. 22-0110) and County of Yolo from aforementioned
bridge, thence easterly along Russell Blvd. (County Road 32) to Shams Way at the El Rio
Villa Housing development, referred to herein as PROJECT.

3. PARTNERS acknowledge that this Agreement is to complete a Project Study Report-
Project Development Support (PSR-PDS) PID.

4. CITY requests CALTRANS to develop the PID and CITY is willing to fund one hundred
percent (100%) of the costs and fees of the PID and the costs to reimburse CALTRANS.

CALTRANS will develop, review and approve the PID as reimbursed work.

5. PARTNERS hereby set forth the terms, covenants, and conditions of this Agreement, under
which they will complete the PID.

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

6. CALTRANS will prepare a PID for PROJECT at CITY's sole cost and expense and at no
cost to CALTRANS.

Project Initiation Document (PID) Agreement 2014-05-01 Page I of 9 40



Agreement 03 - 0618

7.

8.

CALTRANS will complete the work elements that are assigned to it on the SCOPE
SUMMARY which is attached to and made a part of this Agreement by reference. CITY
will complete the work elements assigned to it on the SCOPE SUMMARY. Work

elements marked with "N/A" on the SCOPE SUMMARY are not included within this

Agreement. Work elements are outlined in the Workplan Standards Guide for the Delivery
ofCapital Projects (previously known as WBS Guide) available at

www.dot.ca.eov/hq/proimgmt/guidance.htm.

CALTRANS has no obligation to perform work if funds to perform work are withheld or
unavailable.

FUNDING

FimdType Souce Amount
Allocated

To

Local LOCAL $220,000 CITY

9.

INVOICE AND PAYMENT

CITY agrees to pay CALTRANS. an amount not to exceed $220,000.

10. CALTRANS will draw from state and federal funds that are provided by CITY without
invoicing CITY when CALTRANS administers those funds and CALTRANS has been

allocated those funds by the CTC and whenever else possible.

11. The cost of any engineering support performed by CALTRANS, when allowed, will be
charged according to current law.

12. CALTRANS will invoice CITY for a $20,000 initial deposit after execution of this
Agreement and thirty (30) working days prior to the commencement of PROJECT
expenditures.

Thereafter, CALTRANS will submit to CITY quarterly invoices for prior quarter's
estimated expenditures. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, PARTNERS will
pay invoices within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of invoice.

13. After PARTNERS agree that all work is complete for the PROJECT, CALTRANS will
submit a final accounting for all costs. Based on the final accounting, CALTRANS will
refund or invoice as necessary in order to satisfy the financial commitments of this
Agreement.

Project Initiation Document (PID) Agreement 2014-05-01 Page 2 of 9 41



Agreement 03-0618

14. If an executed Program Supplement Agreement (PSA) or STIP Planning, Programming,

and Monitoring Program Fund Transfer Agreement (PPM) exists for this PROJECT then

CITY will abide by the billing and payment conditions detailed for the fund types

identified in the PSA or PPM.

15. If CITY has received Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) certification from CALTRANS then

CITY will use the EFT mechanism and follow all EFT procedures to pay all invoices

issued from CALTRANS.

16. If CALTRANS reimburses CITY for any costs later determined to be unallowable, CITY

will reimburse those funds.

GENERAL CONDITIONS

17. Per Chapter 603, amending item 2660-001 -0042 of Section 2.00 of the State Budget Act of

2012, the cost of any engineering services performed by CALTRANS towards any local

government agency-sponsored PID project will only include direct costs. Indirect or

overhead costs will not be applied during the development of the PID document.

18. If any hazardous materials, pursuant to Health and Safety Code 25260(d), are found within

PROJECT limits, CALTRANS will notify CITY within 24 hours of discovery.

19. PARTNERS agree to consider alternatives to PROJECT scope and/or alignment, to the
extent practicable, in an effort to avoid any known hazardous materials within the proposed

PROJECT limits.

20. If hazardous materials are discovered within PROJECT limits, but outside of SHS right of
way, it is the responsibility of CITY in concert with the local agency having land use

jurisdiction over the property, and the property owner, to remedy before CALTRANS will

acquire or accept title to such property.

21. CALTRANS* acquisition or acceptance of title to any property on which any hazardous

materials are found will proceed in accordance with CALTRANS' policy.

22. CALTRANS' obligations under this Agreement are subject to the appropriations of

resources by the Legislature, the State Budget Act authority, and the allocation of funds by

the California Transportation Commission.

Project Initiation Document (PID) Agreement 2014-05-01 Page 3 of 9 42



A^eement 03-0618

23. Neither CITY nor any officer or employee thereof is responsible for any injury, damage or
liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by CALTRANS, its
contractors, sub-contractors, and/or its agents under or in coimection with any work,
authority, or jurisdiction conferred upon CALTRANS under this Agreement. It is
understood and agreed that CALTRANS, to the extent permitted by law, will defend,
indemnify, and save harmless CITY and all of its officers and employees from all claims,
suits, or actions of every name, kind, and description brought forth under, but not limited
to, tortious, contractual, inverse condemnation, or other theories and assertions of liability
occumng by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by CALTRANS, its
contractors, sub-contractors, and/or its agents under this Agreement.

24. Neither CALTRANS nor any officer or employee thereof is responsible for any injury,
damage, or liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by CITY,
its contractors, sub-contractors, and/or its agents under or in connection with any work,
authority, or jurisdiction conferred upon CITY under this Agreement. It is understood and
agreed that CITY, to the extent permitted by law, will defend, indemnify, and save
harmless CALTRANS and all of its officers and employees from all claims, suits, or
actions of every name, kind, and description brought forth under, but not limited to,
tortious, contractual, inverse condemnation, or other theories and assertions of liability
occumng by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by CITY, its contractors, sub
contractors, and/or its agents under this Agreement.

25. This Agreement is intended to be PARTNERS' final expression and supersedes all prior
oral understanding pertaining to PROJECT.

26. This Agreement will terminate one hundred eighty (180) days after PID is signed by
PARTNERS or as mutually agreed by PARTNERS in writing. However, all
indemmfication articles will remain in effect until terminated or modified in writing by
mutual agreement.

Project Initiation Document (PID) Agreement 2014-05-0! Page 4 of 9 43



Agreement 03 - 0618

DEFINITIONS

PARTNER - Any individual signatory party to this Agreement.

PARTNERS - The term that collectively references all of the signatory agencies to this
Agreement. This term only describes the relationship between these agencies to work
together to achieve a mutually beneficial goal. It is not used in the traditional legal sense in
which one PARTNER'S individual actions legally bind the other parties.

SCOPE SUMMARY - The attachment in which each PARTNER designates its responsibility
for the completion of specific work elements as outlined by the Workplan Standards Guide
for the Delivery of Capital Projects (previously known as WBS Guide) available at

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/proimgmt/guidance.htm.

Project Initiation Document (PID) Agreement 20l4'05'0l Page 5 of 9 44



Agreement 03 - 0618

CONTACT INFORMATION

The information provided below indicates the primary contact information for each

PARTNER to this Agreement. PARTNERS will notify each other in writing of any
personnel or location changes. Contact information changes do not require an amendment
to this Agreement.

The primary Agreement contact person for CALTRANS is:
Douglas Lange, Project Manager
703 B Street

Marysville, CA 95901
Office Phone: (530) 741-4465
Mobile Phone: (530) 682-5556
Email: Douge.Lange@dot.ca.gov

The primary Agreement contact person for CITY is:
Carol Sciaima, Environmental Services Manager
318 1 St Street

Winters, CA 95694

Office Phone: (530) 794-6715
Email: carol.sciarma@cityofwinters.org

Project Initiation Document (FID) Agreement 2014-05-01 Page 6 of 9 45



Agreement 03-0618

SIGNATURES

PARTNERS declare that:

1. Each PARTNER is an authorized legal entity under California state law.
2. Each PARTNER has the authority to enter into this Agreement.
3. The people signing this Agreement have the authority to do so on behalf of their public

agencies.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

By:
Thomas L. Brarmon

Deputy District Director
D3 Program / Project Management

Certified as to funds:

By:
Stacey Salazar
District Project Control Officer

Certified as to financial terms and policies:

By:

Accounting Administrator

CITY OF WINTERS

By:
John W. Donlevy, Jr.
City Manager

Attest:

By:
Nanci Mills

City Clerk

Approved as to form and procedure:

By:
Ethan Walsh

City Attorney

Project Initiation Document (FID) Agreement 2014-05-01 Page 7 of 9 46



SCOPE SUMMARY

Agreement 03 - 0618

WORK ELEMENT

^

CO

1
<

K

0.100.05.05.XX - Cooperative Agreement for PID Phase X X

0.100.05.lO.xx - Quality Management Plan X

0.100.05.lO.xx - Risk Management Plan X

0.100.05.lO.xx - Communication Plan X

0.100.05. lO.xx - Independent Quality Assurance (IQA) X

0.100.05.IO.XX - Project Development Team Meetings X

0.100.05.lO.xx-ProJect Funding Source Evaluation X X

1.150.05.05 - Review of Existing Reports Studies and Mapping X

1.150.05.10 - Geological Hazards Review X

1.150.05.15 - Utility Search X

1.150.05.20 - Environmental Constraints Identification (PEAR) X

1.150.05.25 - Traffic Forecasts/Modeling (Existing Information) X

1.150.05.30 - Surveys and Maps for PID (Existing Information^ X

1.150.05.35 - Problem Definition/Site Assessment/Purpose and need Statement X X

1.150.05.45 - As-Built Centerline and Existing Right of Way X

1.150.10.05 - Public/Local Agency Input/Alternatives Consensus X X

1.150.15 - Alternatives Development X

1.150.15.05 - Right of Way Data Sheets (Alternatives) X

1.150.15.10 - Utility Relocation Requirements Assessment X

1.150.15.15 - Railroad Involvement Determination X

1.150.15.20 - District Preliminary Geotechnical Report (DPGR) (Existing
Information) X

1.150.15.25 - Preliminary Materials Report (Existing Information) X

1.150.15.35 - Multimodal Review X

1.150.15.40 - Hydraulic Review X

1.150.15.50 - Traffic Studies (Existing Information) X

1.150.15.55 - Construction Estimates (Alternatives)
Traffic Handling/Staging
Construction Sequencing |

X

Project Initiation Document (PID) Agreement 2014-05-01 Page 8 of 9 47



Agreement 03 - 0618

i  WORK ELEMENT

CALTRANS 1  YTIC1

z

1.150.20 - Preliminary Environmental Analysis Report (PEAR) X

1.150.20.05 - Initial Noise Study X

1.150.20.10 - Hazardous Waste Initial Site Assessment X

1.150.20.15 - Scenic Resource and Landscape Architecture Review X

1.150.20.30 - Initial Records and Literature Search for Cultural Resources X

1.150.20.50 - Initial Water Quality Studies X

1.150.20.60 - Preliminary Environmental Analysis Report Preparation X

1.150.20.65 - Initial Paleontology Study X

1.150.25.05 -Draft PID X

1.150.25.20 - PID Circulation, Review, and Approval
PSR-PDS Approval Target 12/01/2017 X X

1.150.25.25 - Storm Water Data Report X

1.150.35 - Required Permits During RID Development X

1.150.40 - Permit Identification During PID Development X

1.150.45 - Base Maps and Plan Sheets for PID X

Project Initiation Document (PID) Agreement 20I4'05'0I Page 9 of9 48



CITY OF

c a O 7 91 t t/

Est. 1875

TO:

DATE:

THROUGH:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers

March 7, 2017

John W. Donlevy, Jr., City Manag(

Shelly A. Gunby, Director of Financial Management

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council receive the 2015-2016 Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR).

BACKGROUND:

Every year the City of Winters has an independent audit performed by an outside auditing firm.
The audit was performed by Van Landt and Fankhenal LLP for the 2015-2016 fiscal year. Upon
completion of the audit, a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, or CAFR is prepared by staff
and the auditors to provide useffil financial information for the City Council, Staff and Citizens
regarding the operations of the City of Winters.

This year's CAFR contains information about factors affecting the financial condition of the City,
the effect of the economy on our ability to adhere to certain financial policies, information about
the capital projects and information about the awards that have been received by the City. This
information is contained in the transmittal letter.

Included in the Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&iA) is a discussion prepared by staff
about the financial highlights for the year, a guide to the financial statements, analysis of the
Government Wide Financial Statements and Governmental Activities, other major funds,
budgetary highlights, capital and debt administration and economic factors impacting future
budgets.

Page 26 of the report includes the Balance Sheet for the Governmental Funds of the City of
Winters; these are all funds with the exception of the Water and Sewer Funds and the Trust Funds
for the former redevelopment agency.

49



The Balance Sheet for the General Fund includes the following items:

Revenue in Excess

Fund Description of Expenditures Fund Balance

101 General Fund (541,863.11) 1,484,515.59
102 Community Development Dept 150,393.79 (1,168,690.77)
104 Fireworks (8,413.42) (7,329.02)
105 Senior Fund Donations (141.11) 246.34

106 Winters Swim 5.62 1,702.83
107 Park Maintenance Committee 11.19 2,269.09
108 Koda Camp (11,601.25) 23,096.20

421 General Fund Capital 2,566.39 556,981.28

427 Capital Equipment Replacement (83,700.10) 507,562.07

429 Service Reserve Fund 169,382.98 1,056,350.36

481 General Plan Deficit 27,983.93 (445,488.17)
501 General Debt Service 239.72 56,662.83

Total (295,135.37) 2,067,878.63

The funds are combined into the General Fund for Financial Reporting purposes due to the fact
that the items are not restricted by law for their use, bur, rather restricted for use by decisions
made by the City Council, or for ease of determining how a particular program is performing over
time.

Included in the CAFR is Note 9 on page 58, Post-Retirement Health Insurance Benefits. The City
of Winters provides retired employees the opportunity to continue their health insurance with
CALPERS. When a retiree elects to continue their health insurance coverage with CALPERS, a
portion of the cost is paid by the City of Winters. For 2016 this amount was $122 per month per
employee, for 2017 the amount is $128 per month per employee. GASB 45 requires that the City
calculate the estimated liability to provide this benefit to employees. Due to our size, actuarial
companies were unwilling to enter into a contract for the actuarial calculation for the estimate. In
concert with our auditors and the CSMFO (California Society of Municipal Finance Officers) staff
prepared an actuarial for determining the liability for Post-Retirement Health Insurance.
Assumptions included in the model include:

• The City cost will increase by 2% a year.
•  Investment return is 3%

•  75% of current employees will elect to continue health coverage after retiring
• Married employees will remain married

• Married employees will cover their spouse if they continue health coverage after
retiring.

The result of the actuarial is that the younger the work force, the higher the potential liability.
TTie actuarial accrued liability for the City of Winters on June 30, 2015 (the most recent Alternate
Measurement Method valuation date) was $861,054. The Annual Required Contribution (ARC)

50



is calculated to eliminate the unfunded liability over a 30 year period. The actuarial accrued
liability and the ARC will change each and every year as our workforce changes. There is no actual
requirement that you fund the ARC, the requirement is that the unfunded ARC be recorded as a
liability on the balance sheet of the City.

Note 10 on page 59 discusses the CALPERS Defined Benefit Pension Plan as of June 30, 2014.
Pension Reform, known as PEPRA began in January 2013. We have new tiers of retirement for
any new CALPERS members, and all new CALPERS members must pay 50% of the normal cost
of the defined benefit plan. This will also require the City to change some of our recruitment
information based on whether potential employees are current CALPERS members or not.
Beginning in 2018 the City may require existing employees to pay 50% of the normal cost of the
defined benefit plan. This will impact salary and benefit negotiations with employees in the
future.

The CAFR includes a comparison of the proposed budget to actual results for certain funds.
These are called Major Funds and in 2015-2016 the City had 3 Governmental (not Water and
Sewer) major funds, the General Fund and the Dry Slough Bridge Fund and the Home-Choc
Grant Fund. The Dry Slough Bridge Fund Balance was ($37,878) on 6/30/16. The actual to
budget information for the General Fund can be found on page 63. The original budget projected
a ($39,912) change in fund balance, after mid-year budget adjustments were made, the projected
change in fund balance was ($543,812), and the actual change in fund balance was ($295,135).
The Budgeted amount included funds 101-General Fund and fund 102-Community
Development. The actual change in fund balance for these two funds was ($391,469) or $117,843
better than budgeted. The table included above in the discussion of the makeup of the balance of
the fund balance of the General Fund shows how each fund contributed to the $ 295,135 decrease
in General Fund balance. The decrease in fund balance of $295,135 is similar to the use of a
savings account to continue to pay for expenses that continue to occur. Additional economic

development needs to be implemented in order for the revenues of the City to be at a level to
sustain, and hopefully, expand services provided to the citizens of the City,

Page 86 shows the results of the various special revenue funds operated by the City. The first
column includes information on the City Wide Assessment District. This fund is responsible for
funding the costs of the services performed to maintain all of the parks within the City. Currently
the fund is operating at a deficit, and this deficit is funded by the General Fund. The City has
recently completed most of the development of the Putah Creek Trail Park, and is looking to
develop the park close to the Orchard Village Apartments. TTiis will add significant new service
requirements for park maintenance when both parks are completed. Funding for the park
maintenance is now $82.50 per residential unit per year, and $41.25 per non-residential unit per
year. Currently there is no anticipated increase in the rate per unit, and the only way to increase
the available funding for park maintenance is to add additional units to the city (both residential
and non-residential). Without additional funding sources, the general fund will continue to
subsidize park maintenance.

Beginning on page 128is the Statistical Section of the CAFR. This section compares results for the
prior 10 years for various operating results. These are required to be included in specific formats
for inclusion in the CAFR. Page 135 compares the Governmental Fund Balances for the last 10
years, and it clearly shows the city increasing fund balance through 2008 and then decreasing for

3

51



every year thereafter, until 2014 for all governmental fund but the story of the General Fund is a
continual reduction in fund balance from 2007 to 2010, small increase in 2011 and 2012 and
then decreasing fund balance thereafter. This shows the impact of using our "savings" account to
continue operations. This also shows that while we prepared for the economic "slowdown" by
committing to reserve fund balances, we now need to look to increasing fund balances in the
future to be prepared for the next "slowdown". This will be accomplished by looking to economic
development and housing construction in the next few years.

Page 140 shows the fluctuation in tax revenues of the City. The impact of the increase in the
Utility User tax in 2010-2011 is clearly evident in the Other Taxes column. Also illustrated is the
impact of the housing values in the decrease of property taxes from a high in 2009 of $ 1,395,538
to the 2010 amount of $1,121,922, a 19% decrease in one year. We are now rebounding from the
2011 low, but still see some volatility in the property taxes as 2016 receipts were 6% lower than
2015. Additional retail outlets have helped in providing an increase in Sales tax.

Page 131 and 132 show the changes in net position for Governmental Funds over the past 10
years. This can be somewhat deceptive, due to the fact that included in the Governmental Funds
include all the special revenue funds, and most especially the Grant Funds. The use of Grant
Funds typically has a negative impact on the Governmental Fund Balances. This is due to the fact
that most Grants are handled on a reimbursement basis, that is, the City advances the funds to pay
for the services that are grant funded, and then we receive a reimbursement from the Grant for the
amounts that we have advanced. This means that most of the time, until the grant is completed,
we have always paid more out for grant projects than we have received.

Page 141 includes information on Assessed Values for the last 10 years, and clearly shows how our
Assessed values were reduced with the housing crisis, and the associated foreclosures and are now
beginning to rebound somewhat but are still significantly lower than the high in 2010.

The CAFR (Comprehensive Annual Financial Report) is posted on the City of Winters website for
the public to have access to read and review.

HSCAL IMPACT:

None by this action

ATTACHMENTS

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) under separate cover.

52


	Agenda - 3/7/2017 City Council Meeting
	Minutes - 2/21/2017 City Council Meeting
	Cal Fire Grant Award Acceptance, Golden Bear Pre-Plan
	SACOG MOU and CalTrans Agreement for I-505 Overpass Study Report
	Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

